

Minutes of the City of Alameda Health Care District Board of Directors Open Session

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Monday January 0	2012 Regular Meeting
IVIUIUAY, January 9.	
	0 0

Board Members Present	Management Present	Legal Counsel Present	Guests
Jordan Battani	Deborah E. Stebbins	Thomas Driscoll, Esq.	N/A
Stewart Chen, DCKerry J.Robert Deutsch, MDRobert A	Kerry J. Easthope	Medical Staff Present	Excused
Robert Deutsch, MD Elliott Gorelick	Robert Anderson	Jim Yeh, DO	J. Michael McCormick
Submitted by: Erica Ponce, Adminis	strative Secretary		<u>.</u>

Topic		Discussion	Action / Follow-Up
Ι.	Call to Order	The meeting was called to order at 6:08 p.m.	
١١.	Roll Call	Ms. Thorson called roll noting a quorum of Directors was present.	

Director Gorelick made an objection to the Closed Session Agenda, *Public Performance Evaluation Title: Senior Executives*, indicating that discussion regarding compensation should occur in open session and not in Closed Session. Director Battani stated the evaluation of performance criteria is appropriate to discuss in Closed session, however the material that was distributed combined both performance evaluation criteria and compensation in the document that was distributed in the Closed Session packet. The purpose of the discussion tonight is to talk about performance evaluation criteria because staff has recommended a change to the way the evaluation criteria for awarding the bonus will work. All discussion relating to compensation will be discussed in closed session. Mr. Driscoll confirmed that it was appropriate to have these discussions in Closed Session.

- III. Adjourn into Executive Closed The meeting was adjourned into Executive Closed Session at 6:10 p.m. Session
- IV. Closed Session Agenda
- V. Reconvene to Public Session The meeting was reconvened into public session at 7:07 p.m.
 - A. Announcements From Closed Session

Director Battani stated that the Minutes were approved from December 5, 2011. No other action was taken.

Topic			Discussion	Action / Follow-Up
I.		Iren Alar on t	Public Comment e Dieter: Ms. Dieter wanted to clarify that the comments she made at the November 2011 District E neda Health Care District Board of Directors follow the format that other Boards and Commissions i he alamedahospital.org website, the Agenda should be only one to two pages with links to each age n agenda item.	n Alameda follow. Ms. Deiter suggested that
II.	Re	gular	Agenda	
	Α.	Con	sent Agenda	
		1)	Acceptance of December 5, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes	Director Deutsch made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Director
		2)	Approval of Administrative Policy No. 83 – Community Care Guidelines and No. 83a – Self Pay or Uninsured Patient Cash Payment Discounts	Chen seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.
	В.	Acti	on Items	
		1)	Acceptance of October 2011 Unaudited Financial Statements and November 30, 2011 Finance and Management Committee Report. Director Deutsch reviewed the notes from the January 4 th committee meeting noting the following:	Director Gorelick made a motion to accept the November 2011 Unaudited Financial Statements as presented. Director Chen seconded the motion. The motion carried
			November Unaudited Financial Statements were reviewed, noting the Average daily census (ADC) was 81.5 versus 83.8 budgeted, Acute ADC was 28.3 versus 29.6 budgeted, Sub-Acute ADC was 31.1 versus 33.0 budgeted, and Skilled Nursing ADC was 22.1 versus 21.2 budgeted. Outpatient registrations were 1,996 versus 1,948 budgeted. Overall gross revenue was \$1.5M unfavorable to budget. Case Mix Index showed a marked improvement from October and was higher than prior November; year to date was below prior year to date due to low September/October 2011Operating expenses were \$111,000 under budget with unfavorable variances in salaries, benefits and professional fees that were offset by favorable variances in registry and supplies. The operating loss for the month was \$681,000 versus budgeted loss of \$71,000.	unanimously.
			In the CEO Report, Ms. Stebbins and Teresa Jacques (HFS Consultant and project manager) reviewed the Revenue Cycle Work plan highlighting key areas of focus such as in department reorganization, billing issues and tasks, Collections, Bad, debt and Charity Care as well as other areas. Associate Administrator Kerry Easthope updated the Committee on Waters Edge as well as the Wound Care Center. Ms. Stebbins informed the committee that CHA filed for an injunction on AB 97 and the judge acted in favor of the injunction. The hospital will continue to book the lower rate in case the injunction is reversed.	

Торіс		Discussion	Action / Follow-Up
	manageme update on t case mix as	port: The Daily Reporting tool was reviewed by Bob Anderson. The tool helps nt monitor key statistics on a daily basis. Bob Anderson, Interim CFO provided a brief he Case Mix Index and some areas that he has identified that may be affecting the s compared to prior years. There was discussion amongst the committee members, the physicians regarding this topic.	
	The next Fi	nance and Management Committee will be held on January 25 th .	
	levels, regis suggested f	took place at the Board meeting concerning the October Case Mix Index, acuity stration issues, collection of revenue, and ratio comparisons. Director Battani that Interim CFO Bob Anderson make a presentation at the next Finance and nt Committee for an explanation of the Case Mix Index.	
2)	Approval to	Enter into a Contract with Rossi Builders for Construction of Wound Care Center	Director Deutsch made a motion to approve
	Center Proj was held or time four of retracted th Builders wa project. Th the HVAC s	hope reviewed the bid process noting that plans and a bid packet for the Wound Care ect at Marina Village were provided to contractors in December. A bid conference in December 8, 2011. The bid deadline was December 29, 2011 at 4:00 p.m. at which the seven prequalified bidders submitted bids for review. One of the bidders, leir bid, which left three bidders, Rossi Builders, Q Builders, and BNBuilders. Rossi as the lowest responsible bid and is being recommended as the contractor for the e bid is \$755,609 higher than budgeted due to previously unknown factors such as system expenses.	entering into a contract with Rossi Builders contingent upon securing building permit and financing as originally described. Further, if there is a change in the financing with the Bank of Alameda, the Board of Directors will be so apprised before the award of the contract. Director Chen seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.
	regarding fi	took place involving Directors Battani, Gorelick, and Chen along with Mr. Easthope nancing with the Bank of Alameda, cost of the project, timing of payments, from the City, permits, and contingency plans.	
3)	Approval of	Election of District Board Officers	
	Nominatio	ns were made for the Board Officer positions:	
	a.	Director Deutsch nominated Jordan Battani for President. Director Gorelick abstained from voting. The nomination carried.	
	b.	Director Chen nominated Robert Deutsch, MD for 1 st Vice President. Director Gorelick abstained from voting. The nomination carried.	
	C.	Director Gorelick nominated Stewart Chen, DC for 2 nd Vice President. The nomination carried unanimously.	
	d.	Director Deutsch nominated J. Michael McCormick for Treasurer. The nomination carried unanimously.	
	e.	Director Chen nominated Elliott Gorelick for Secretary. Director Gorelick asked if a nomination could be declined and if a Director could hold multiple offices. Mr.	

Торіс		Discussion			Action / Follow-Up
		riscoll confirmed that a Director fices. The nomination carried		ation and could hold multiple	
The Board rece	essed for a brief l	break and returned session at	: 8:30 p.m.		
4)	Approval of Bo Committees	oard Member Appointment an	d Committee Chair Sele	ction for Board Designated	
		ani noted that two Board mem or the Board Officer positions:	bers are needed for eac	h committee. Nominations	
	a) Boar	d Quality Committee:			
		Director Chen nominated Director Chen nominated Director Aember. The nomination carried to the second s		nittee Chair and a Voting	
		Director Deutsch nominated Di arried unanimously.	irector Chen to be a Voti	ng Member. The nomination	
	b) Finar	nce and Management Commit	ttee:		
	,	Director Deutsch nominated J. /oting Member. The nomination		be Committee Chair and	
	Ć	Director Chen nominated Elliot Director Gorelick, and Director nomination carried.			
		Director Deutsch nominated hi o approve this nomination. Th		mber. Director Deutsch voted rry.	
	c) Com	munity Relations and Outreac	h Committee:		
		Director Deutsch nominated St Member. The nomination carr		committee Chair and Voting	
		Director Chen nominated Jorda arried unanimously.	an Battani to be a Voting	Member. The nomination	
	The following	table represents the approve	ed committee membershi	ip.	
		Finance & Management Committee	Board Quality Committee	Community Relations & Outreach Committee	
	Committee Chair	Michael McCormick	Robert Deutsch, MD	Stewart Chen, DC	
	Voting Member	Elliott Gorelick	Stewart Chen	Jordan Battani	

Торіс			Discussion			Action / Follow-Up
	Ex-Of	icio	Jordan Battani	Jordan Battani	N/A	
	Director committe Director individua to partici to partici Board wi and infor	Battani sta es. ACH Battani cla Ily, only a pate if the pate, the I Il decide v mation fro	arified that District Board is a whole Board. She pr ey so choose on an ACHE District Board to ratify tha what responsibilities woul	g for volunteers to participoards authorize their Bo Members do not act on b oposed that the Board ap O standing committee. If at appointment. If there is d be in regards to inform on an ACHD standing co	ard Members to participate. behalf of the District oprove any Board Members they are selected and invited an appointment, the District ing the Board of the activities mmittee would be in addition	Director Gorelick made a motion to approve District Board Members be authorized to apply for participation in volunteer opportunities with ACHD committees. Director Chen seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.
	6) Accepta	nce of FY	2011 Executive Performa	ance Metrics Summary		Item was deferred to a future meeting.
C.	President's R	eport				No action taken.
	Director Batta	ni had no	President's Report to pre			
D.	Medical Staff	President	Report			No action taken.
	Amplification: place on Tues	An Upda day, Janu	te for the General Practit	ioner" by Melissa Amorn n in Conference Room A	Causes – Need for Early MD. This event will take The Medical Staff Party on for organizing the event.	
E.	Community R	elations a	nd Outreach Committee	Report		Stewart Chen, DC
	Director Cher	presente	d the following report.			
		•	y Relations Committee di			
	candi Janua	date has o try 17, 20 [.]		vship program and is exp approximately eight hours	ected to start the week of sper week for 12-16 weeks	
	Public	Health Ir	ad an initial meeting with nstitute and AUSD regard oring program for high sc	ling the possibility of insti	tuting a	
			ital will be hosting an inte 12. The university studer		ency from Shanghai on public organizations in the	

Topic			Discussion					Action / Follow-Up
		U.S. and comparing	them with Chin	a.				
	•	Free Stroke Risk Ass to 11:30 a.m.	sessments is be	eing offered a	again on Frida	ay, January 27, 20	12 from 8:30	
	•	• The next Community	Relations Con	nmittee meet	ing is schedul	ed for January 24	, 2012.	
F.	Chie	f Executive Officer's Rep	oort					
	1)	Monthly CEO Report						No action taken.
		Ms. Stebbins thanked I Holiday Party. It went Stebbins informed the Peggy Withrow, passed	well and includ Board that Alar	ed over 40 pe neda Hospita	eople from the	e Waters Edge sta President, Bill Wi	aff. Ms. throw's wife,	
		Ms. Stebbins included asked if there were any					month and	
		Director Gorelick asked his questions, spoke al						
		Ms. Stebbins reported physical therapy progra information will be brou	am which will a	dd to the qua	ality of patient			
	2)	Monthly Volume Statis	tics					No action taken.
		Ms. Stebbins reviewed	the monthly vo	olume statisti	CS.			
			December Preliminary	December	% ∆ compared	% ∆ compared	November	

			%Δ		
	December	December	compared	% Δ compared	November
	Preliminary	Budget	to Budget	to November	Actual
Average Daily Census	83.2	84.94	-3.1%	1.0%	81.47
Acute	28.29	30.23	-6.4%	0.1%	28.27
Subacute	33.00	33.00	0.0%	6.0%	31.13
South hore	21.03	21.71	-3.1%	4.7%	22.07
Patient Days	2,552	2,633	-3.1%	4.4%	2,444
ER Visits	1,409	1,426	-1.2%	4.4%	1,349
OP Registrations	1,698	1,929	-12.0%	-14.9%	1,996
Total Surgeries	167	186	-10.2%	-15.2%	197
Inpatient Surgeries	36	44	-18.2%	-2.7%	37
Outpatient Surgeries	131	142	-7.7%	-18.1%	160
Case Mix Index	1.2841				1.3230

Торіс		Discussion	Action / Follow-Up
	2)	Marthly Quality Matrice	No option tokon
	3)	Monthly Quality Metrics	No action taken.
		a) SNF/SA Data and Findings of State Survey	
		Alice Martin, RN, MSA, Sub-Acute Nurse Manager reported on SNF/SA Data and Findings of State Survey. Ms. Martin spoke about quality improvement, error reduction and infection prevention. A handout was distributed to the Board and will be included with the original Board packet.	
	4)	Recommendation relating to December 5, 2011 District Board Referral – Assessment of Cost and Operational Impact of Implementing Changes to Public Notice and Disclosure Standards	No action taken.
		Management recommended continued compliance with public records requirements by staying with our current schedule of information distribution. Finance Committee is the exception: The report for that committee will be distributed 5.5 days in advance rather than the current distribution schedule of 4.5 days in advance.	
		Director Battani suggested that Management and Staff strive to improve the timing of all meeting notices and information when possible.	
	5)	Recommendation relating to December 5, 2011 District Board Referral – Assessment of Cost and Operational Impact of Improving the Alameda Hospital Website Functionality and Access to Public Documents	No action taken.
		Management recommended Option One (see enclosure), which will allow ease of access to agenda items. The cost is modest in comparison with the other options. Refer to enclosure for full information. Discussion took place regarding the website and updates. Management and staff will implement the changes identified.	
G.	Ope	rations and Facilities Report	No action taken.
	1)	Waters Edge Transition Planning Update	
		Mr. Easthope updated the District Board regarding the licensing application status and the transition of Waters Edge. Target date was for the transition is anticipated for early February, but most likely will be later than that. The Human Resource Department will be processing employees from Waters Edge this week. Management is looking at three candidates for the Long Term Care Director. Director Gorelick inquired about the tracking of self-pay census. Mr. Easthope replied that the census was down slightly for self-pay and that it would be a good idea to begin tracking that specifically.	
		Director Gorelick also inquired as to what will be done to communicate to, market to and reach out to other area hospitals. Mr. Easthope replied that those areas of communication will be an	

•	;	Discussion Action / Follow-Up	
		important part of the Director's job. There will be also be someone hired as a marketing director (or similar role) whose responsibility will be to go out and visit referral sources and build relationships.	
		Director Gorelick inquired as to the St. Rose situation and asked if they were shutting down their facility. Management replied that they are unsure of that situation.	
	2)	Wound Care Center Update Due to the discussion of the Wound Care Center earlier in the meeting, Mr. Easthope did not have anything further to report.	
VII.	General	Public Comments	
	No public	c comments were given.	
VIII.	No public Board Co		
VIII.	Board Co A. E		ement
VIII.	Board Co A. E ci	omments Director Gorelick spoke about self-pay accounts being an issue for the Hospital. He suggests that negotiating early and often while offering discounts could help to gain a higher collection rate. Ms. Stebbins replied that it was a good suggestion and discussed strategies that Manage	ement

Attest:

Jordan Battani President Elliott Gorelick Secretary